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Independent Auditors’ Report

. wp

To the Members of Ce L
Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

ey
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statenients

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Hardeastle Restauranis Private Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2019, and the statement of profit and
loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of c‘ash_
flows for the vear then ended, and notes to the financial sctements, including a summary of
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In-our upi'nion and to the best of our information and according o the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by (he Compaaies Act, 2013 ("Act™) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting prineiples
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019, and profit

and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
dale.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accurdance wiih the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specitied under section
13(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs arc turther described in the Awditor's
Respunsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Siatements section of our report. We are independent
ot the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics. issued by the Institute of Churtered’
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions ofihe Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our ather ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We

believe that the uudit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our apinion,

, Key Audit Maticrs

Key audit matters are those matters th

at, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our dudit of the financial statements of the eurrent period. ‘These matrers were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as w whole, aplin forming our opinion thercon, and
we do nat provide a sepuraic opinion on these matters, '
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Rey Audit Matters (Continued)

n

Revenue recognition
Teefer Note 20 1o the st i temonis,

The Company s primary souree of revenue is-from sale o food. beverages #fid tys tron its
chain of quick service restarant (QSRY stores or thraugh. o) ingtordering and delivery.

Revenue comprises of numerous transactions of smull finodnts and

processes for recording, accuracy and completeness, -+ B <

We continue to assess revenue recognition as an area o aud)
a significant effect on our audit strategy and our allocation of re
therelore been identified as a kev audit matter.

How we have addressed the risg

Our audit procedures included obtaining an understanding of the businessand the processes
by whichrevenue transactions are initiated, processed and recorded in the general ledger and
reported in the financial statements. Our audit approach was designed to be responsive to
ourassessed risk ol material misstatement over revenue and comprised a combination of test
of controls and substantive procedures, After obtaining an understanding of the processes.
we evaluated the design of interial controls over revenue transactions and also tested the
effcctiveness of these internal centrols to form ow opinion for reliance on controls. We
supplemented our controls tesim, by performing relevant substantive procedures.

Our audit work included. but was not restricted 1o,

i. Performing walkthroughs for a sample of sales transactions from origination through to
tielr recording In the genersl (edaer to ensure that révenue recognised was complete and
wag regordad in the appropriate period und ut the coned value,

2. Testing internal controts over additions to and changes in the POS master file data at
wdividual stores

3. Testing internal controls over recording of sules, collection and custody of cash
including segregation of dutics and reconciliation of'sales records with bank callections.

‘Ja

Ensuring the three way mateh benween sales as recorded by the stores in the POS sysiem
with the collections in thie buik and the sales accounted in the general ledger.

5. Performing analytical procedures on saies performance of individuatly significant stores
and enquiring reasons for day muterial varonces. i suy. Tt salds aed Lrossmareing,

Potential impairment of propesiy, plant and equipment

{refier Note f tothe finuncial statements)

Asar 31 March 2019, the carrying value of Company's property, plant and equipment was

Rs 5,620 millions which wccounts fur 1% of the Company's tolut assets.

f.ocal economic conditions snd the Iével of campatition from other similar restaurants
impaer e perfornuinee of the « Supany s QSR stees Ciiven the significant levels of
propesty. plintand eGuipnient e G by e Compans « wier 280 gpemaling stoges, there iy a
sk that the value of propers, plang aud equiproent, whieh generally comprises leasehokd
1mprovenients, air conditioning sy stemsand Kitichen cquipment, in certain stores may not be
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Key Audit Matters (C ontinued)

3) Evaluation of uncertain tayx positions (Conrinued)
How we have addressed the rigk
Our audit procedures include the following substantive procedures:
I Obtained understanding of key uncentain fax positions.

2 We along with our internal tax experts held discussions with the Company’s
management, read the summary of litigation matters provided and discussed each of the
material cases noted in the report fo determine the Company’s assessment of the
likelihood and magnitude of any liability that may arise. Where appropriate and relevant,
we examined correspondence connected with (e cases, including external legal advice,

Other Information

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Cempany’s annual report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditors” report thercon. The Company’s Annual Report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other in formation and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becames available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears 1o be materially misstated. :

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the state ol affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safegoarding of the assets ol the Company and for preventing -and detecting frands
and other irregularities: selection and application of' appropriste accounting palicies; making
Judgments and estimates that are reasunable and prudent; and  design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal linancial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
- theaceuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant w the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and ace free from material n1i55tu10111ertl“
whether due to fraud or error,
In preparing the financial stutements, management and Boned of Directors ave vesponsible lar
assessing the Company’s ability 1o continge as 1 going concern. disclosing, as applicable, mallers
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends 1o liguidate the Company or 1o cea e aperations, or has ne realistic lternative but to do so.

Beard of Directors is also responsible for oversecing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audicof the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are .f{ee from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a-high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
ihz}l‘ an dudit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in

the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 10 influence the economic decisions of users 1aken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial siatements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,

‘as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions. misrepresenfations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding: of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls,

» Evaluate the appropriateness of daccounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s-use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw atlention in
our auditor’s report to the related diselosures in the financiil statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to madify our opinion Our conelusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our suditor's report. However, (uture events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a goimg concern.

Evaluate thie overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
' disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
We communicate with those charged with governance regieding. among other mattérs, the pl:um‘gd
scope und timing of the audit and significant andit findings, including any-significant deticiencics in
internal contyol that we identify during o audit,
Wealso provide those charged with goversanee with 8 stuement that we have complied with celevant
cibical requirements regardpng independence, and 10 communicate with them afl re!n,tumslupf n;l.d
other matters that may redSonably be thougit 1o bear oit vur independence, gl where applicable,
related safepuards,
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financinl Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with (hose charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
thereforé the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditors” report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences.
of doing so would reasonably be expeeted to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

. As required by the Companies (Auditors® Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the
Central Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a
slatement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(A) Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the inforimation and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) Inouropinion. proper books of siccount as required by law have been kept by the Company
so faras it appears from our examination of those books,

¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement ol cash flows dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of gccount.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act.

¢) Ountlic Lasis of the writien representations received from the directors as on 31 Mareh
2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the aperating effectiveness of such controls, refer ta our
separate Report in “Annexure B”,

(B).  With respect to the other matters 1o be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information.and according 1o the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2019 o its
financial position in its f{inancial statements - Refer Note 33 to the financial statemeants;
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.
fii. There were no amounts which were requirego be transferced to the [nvestor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company., 7
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatary Requirements (Continued)

iv. The disclosures in the financa! statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in
specified bank nates during the period from & November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have
not been made in these financizt statements since they do not pertain to the financial year
ended 31 March 2019,

(C)  With respect to the matter to be inciuded in the Auditors' Report under section 197(16):

In vur opinion and according to the wnformation and explanations given to us. the remuneration
paid by the Company 1o its directors during the current year is in accordance willt the
provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid (o any director is not in excess of’
the Jimit Jaid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate AfTairs has not
prescribed other details under Sect:on 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by

us,
For BS R & Assaciates LLP
Chart
Firm's Registration
ShablAr Readymidewala
Partner
Chennai Membership No: 100060

31 August 2019 UDIN No. 19100060AAAABWS001
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Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

"Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report - 31 March 2019 on . &
the Financial Statements

" (Referred to in parageaph | under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements®
scetion of our report of even date)

With reference 10 Annexure A referred w in the Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of
Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited (‘the Company’) on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2019, we report the tollowing:

@ . (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets
by which all fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over x period of three
years. Inour opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard o the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with
this programme, the Company has carried out the physical verification of certain -
assets during the year, No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given 1o us, the title deeds of
immovable propertics included in property, plant and equipment are held in the
name of the Company.

(ii) The Company has conducted physical vaification of fnventory at reasonable Intervals
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

(i) In our opinion and according w the infounation aund explanations  glven to us, the
-- Company has not granted any loans, sccured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited
liability partnership or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189

of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph (iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv)  Inouropinion and aceording to the information and explanatians given tang, the Company
has not granted any loan or provided any guarantee or security in respect of hich
provisions of Section 185 of the Act are applicable and henee not commented upon. The
Company has complied with the applicable provisions of Section 186 of the Act.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us; the Company -
has not accepted any deposits from the public in necordance with relevant provisions of
Seetions 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there
under, Accordingly, paragraph (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company:.

(vi) The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section
148(1) of the Act for any ol the goods sold and services rendered by (he Company.

(Vi) (a) According to the informasiion and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the eeords of the Company. amounts deductedacerued ,i" the
books-of seeount in respectof undisputed stituory does including provident fund,
cimployees™ staly insurance, income tx, goods and services tax, duty of i
cess und other material sawtory dues have been regularly deposited during the
year-by the Compuny witli the appropriate ilu:hv!‘iliﬁﬁ—,/ ' '
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Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited.

‘Annexure A’ to the Independent Audifor’s Report - 31 Maréh 2019 on
the Financial Statements (Continued)

According to the information t;lid explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, employees® state insurance, income tax,
roods and services tax, duty of custom, cess and ather material statutory dues were
in arrears as at 31 March 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date
they beeime payable, except Rs 0.45 million unpaid on account of pending
profession tax registrauon for the state of Guarar,

(b) - According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues.of
income tax, sales-tax, service tax, goods and services tax. duty of custom, duty of
excise, value added tax and cess which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute except as shoywn below:

Name of the Naturc ofthe  Amount Rs Period to which the  Forum where dispute
statute disputed dues — (millions)* amount relates is pending

Cential Excise Duty of evcise 43740 2000-01 to 2005-06 Appellate Tribunal,
Act, 1944 Mumbai

Bombay Salcs Sales-tax 254 2003-0410 2004-05  Commissionsr of
Tax Act, 1959 Sales Tax (Appeal),

: Mumbaj _
Kamataka Valie  Sales-ax 49679 2008-09t0 2013-14°  High Court of
Added Tax, 2003 Kamataka
| Central Goods &  Goods and 74.93 November201710 H izh Court of

Services Tax Services tay January 2018 Bombay **
Act, 2017

*Net of amounts deposited under protest

** Demand order passed by National Anli-Profiteering Authority has been stayed
by the High Court of Bombay

(viii)  In our-opinionand according to the information and cxplanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in repaynmient of loans or barrowings 10 a bunk. The Company did not
-have any outstanding . dues 10 debenture holders, Government or to any financial

institutions during the year. Accordingly, paragraph (viii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.,

(ix)  During the year, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public affer
or further public offer (including debt instruments) nnd term loan, Accordingly, paragraph
(ix) of the Order is not applicable 10 the Company,

(%) According to'the information and explanations given (o us, no fraud by the Company or on

the Company by its officers or employees has been naticed or reported during the course of
our audil. ’

(xi) According to the information and explanations given (o ys and based on our
examination of the records, the Compuny: hgs paid/provided remuneiation to managerial
person in accordance with the requisite approvals mandaged by the provisions of Section
197 read with Schedule Vo the acy

(xii) Inour opinion ang according to the information and explnations given 1o us, tlie Company
|Cs not & l_l::i.li}mpauy. Accordingly, paragniph (xii) of the Order s not applicable o the
ompany, . i
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Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

‘A'nncxure A’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report - 31 March 2019 on
the Financial Statements (Continued)

(xin

{xiv)
(xv)

'fx\}'i) '

‘Chennai

.-\ccor«!irlg to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
exainination of the reeords of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with Scetions 177 and Section 188 of the Act, where applicable. The details of
such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required
by the applicable accounting standards, ‘

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph
(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. '

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph (xv) of the Order is not applicable to

“the Company..

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
india Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause (xvi) of the Ocder are not

applicable to the Company.,

For BS R & Associates LLP

ced Accountays
6% 1 W/W- 06024
¥ oy

Stabr Read yiadewala
Partner
Membership No; 100060

31 August2019 UDIN No. 19100060AAAABWS001



Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the financial
statements of Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited for the year ended
31 March 2019.

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial staterments
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of-Scction 143 of the Companics Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 1(A)(D) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements® section of our report of even date)

Opiuion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Hardcastle
Restaurants Private Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion. the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2019, based on the internal financial controls with reference.to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal conirol stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Finaneial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note™),

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls bused on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal  control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were ‘operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and cfficicul conduet of fis business, ncluding adherence to
company’s policics, the safeguarding of its assels, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
linancial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act™).

Auditors” Responsibility

Qur responsibility is 10 express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate iniernal financial
controls with reference {o financial statemenits were established and maintained and whether such
controls operated effectively in all material respects,
Ouraudit involves performing procedures 1o Sblain audi ev
financial controls with reference 1o financial statements anc
of internal financial controls with reference to financinl statements included obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that o material weakness exists,

and iesting and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend

3 on the auditor's judgement, including the assessmeny”
‘ ofthe risks of material misstatement of the fnancial stafements, whether dae to fraud or error,

idence ubout the adequacy of the internal
I their operating effectiveness. Qur audit
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Aunexure B to the Independent Audifors’ report on the financial
statements of Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited for the year ended

31 March 2019 (Continued)

Auditors’ Responsibilit_v (Continued)

We believe thar the audit evidence we have ablained is suflicicat and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company ‘s internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements,

Mecaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
1o provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 10 permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with gencrally aceepled aceounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention ortimely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements. '

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements duc to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 1o fitire periods
are subject to the risk that the intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements may-
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or thut the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For B S R & Associates LLP

Membership No: 100060

Chennai :
31 August 2019 UDIN Na. 19100060AAAABWSE00I]



Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2019

(Rs. in millions)

I ASSETS

1 Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Capital work-in-progress
(c) Investment property
(d) Other intangible assets
(e) Financial Assets
(i) Investments
(ii) Loans
(iii) Others
() Income tax assels (net)
(g) Deferred tax assets
(h) Other assets
Total non-current assets

2 Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments
(1)) Trade receivables
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Loans
(v) Others
(¢) Other assets
Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS
1 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1 EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity
Totul equity

2 LIABILITIES
1 Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilitics
M Nthers
(L) Diuvisiuus
Total non-current liabilities
2 Current liabilities
(2) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Trade Payables
Total outstanding due to micro enterprises and small enterprises

Notes

NS L S N

—
% o

—
~

G0 N

13

i

17
18

Total outstanding dues other than to micro enterprises and small enterprises

(iii) Others (other than those specified above)
(b) Provisions
(s) Owrrent tan liwbilitics (uct)
(d) Other liabilities
Tulal Cuiicul Llabilliles

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Significant accounting policies
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

14
15

5th Floor,
Lodha Excelus,

N. M. Joshi Marg,
Mahalaxmi,
\‘\L’j Mumbai-400011.

As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
5,020.03 4,631.94
283.72 197.37
591 6.58
460.10 434.60
970.86 1,294.34
433.36 390.27
41.94 2,03
69.89 43.98
63.24 222.50
504.27 514.99
7,853.32 7,738.60
409.94 336.82
1,008.05 535.55
97.59 64.31
90.72 109.06
15.86 23.36
75.63 65.71
176.35 85.21
1,874.14 1,220.02
9.727.46 8,958.62
1,747.63 1,747.63
3,507.53 3,786 63
5,255.16 5,034.26
7.09 0.8
24.11 15.00
31.20 18.42
2,339.24 1,835.19
0.04 -
1,177.76 1,139.43
654.19 670.99
55.39 5427
16.55 293
107.03 203.13
4,441.10 3,905.94
9,727.46 8,958.62




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Balance Sheet (Continued)
as at March 31, 2019

(Rs. in millions)

Chennai Surnsk Lalokmisarayassn Radha Jala
August 31, 2019 Chief| Officer Cumpary Secrefary
Mumbai
August 31,4019

y Lodha Excelus, " U
QQ (Apollg Mills Compound \ =01 5
* N.M. Joshi Marg,
Manalaxmi,
Mumbai-400011
India
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Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Rs. in millions)

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Revenue from operations 20 14,016.06 11,348.74
Other income 2] 136.39 195.15
Total income 14,152.45 11,543.89
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 22 5,115.87 4,301.70
Employce benefits expense 23 1,974.52 1,725.64
Finance costs 24 177.32 1,055.23
Depreciation and amortisation expense 25 797.13 672.57
Other expenses 26 5,732.48 4,577.58
Total expenses 13,797.32 12,332.72
Profit / (loss) before tax 355.13 (788.83)
Less : Tax expense

- Current tax 27 13.63 -

- Deferred tax 27 124.95 (244.65)
Total tax expense 138.58 (244.65)
Profit / (Loss) for the year 216.55 (544.18)
Other comprehensive income:

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss :

Re-measurements of defined benefit plan (2.80) (1.28)
Income tax on items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss 27 0.94 0.43
Other comprehensive income for the year (1.86) (0.85)
Total comprehensive income for the year 214.69 (545.03)
Earnings per equity share :

- Basic and Diluted (in Rs.) 43 123.91 (989.38)
Significant aceonnting palicies 3
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Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2019

(Rs. in millions)

As per our report of even date attached

Munl_{ushipNo:lOOOGO
UDIN No. } 31000 60AAA ARW &o0l

Chennai
August 31, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Hardcasile Restaurants Private Limited

—.Qet.u_c; C o Wz
Banwari Lal Jatla See ta Nambiar
Director Director

~
Suresh Lakshminafayanan Radha Jain
Chief Financial er Company Secretary
Mumbai
August 31, 201
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Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Cash flow Statement
Jor the year ended March 31, 2019

(Rs. in millions)

N

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
A.  CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit / (Loss) before taxation 355.13 (788.83)
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 797.13 672.57
Sundry balances written off 9.83 -
Loss on Sale / write off of property, plant and equipment 56.07 71.37
Finance cost 17732 1,055.23
Interest income (10.68) (25.92)
Gain on sale of current investment (115.89) (144.59)
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,268.91 839.83
B Movements in Working Capital
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories (73.12) (34.43)
Decrease/ (Increase) in trade receivables (33.29) (15.09)
Decrease/ (Increase) in non-current loans (43.09) (51.17)
Decrease/ (Increase) in current loans 7.50 11.48
Decrease/ (Increase) in other non-current financial assets (39.91) (1.26)
Decrease/ (Increase) in other current financial assets (11.72) 28.14
Decrease/ (Increase) in other non current assets 75.18 1135
Decrease/ (Increase) in other current assets (55.89) 71.42
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables 38.37 356.94
(Decrease)/Increase in other non-current financial liabilities 3.67 0.69
(Decrease)/Increase in current other financial liabilities 599 104.45
(Decrease)/Increase in non-current provisions 9.11 15.00
(Decrease)/Increase in current provisions 1.12 (11.26)
(Decrease)/Increase in other current liabilities (4.02) 22.58
Cash generated from operations 1,148.81 1,348.67
Tax refund received / (taxes paid) (25.91) (24.02)
C NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,122.90 1,324.65
D CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVILIES
Additions to fixed assets and capital work-in-progress (1,432.30) (1,063.42)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 1.04 4.17
Interest income 1249 15.99
(Investment in) / maturity of fixed deposits 0.00 (0.12)
(With original maturity of three months or more)
Purchase of investments (6,356.55) (2,893.38)
Proceeds from sale of investments 6,323.46 2,898.70
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1,451.86) (1,038.06)
E CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds of short-term borrowings 8,492.50 9,280.00
Repayment of short-term borrowings (8,000.00) (9,100.00)
Repayment of long term borrowings - (75.00)
Interest paid (177.01) (153.15)
NET CASH FLOW FROM / (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 315.49 (48.15)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (13.47) 238.44
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 90.20 (148.24)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 76.73 90.20
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (13.47) 238.44
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Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Cash flow Statement (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2019

(Rs. in millions)

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances (refer note 11)

Less : not considered 2s cash and cash equivalents

Fixed deposit with remaining maturity of more than three months
Less: Bank Overdrafs (refer note 17)

Less : Book Overdrafts (refer note 14)

Total cash and cash equivalents

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

1WIW-100024

Shibbir Readyma
Partner
Membership No: 100060

UDIN No. [(9180v60AAAA R 8001

Chennai
August 31,2019
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For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
90.72 109.06
193 0,03
11.74 0.19
032 18.64
76.73 9020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Banwari Lal Jatia ma Arora Nambiar
Director Director
-

Suresh Lalshminarayanan Radha Jain
Chief Financial Company Secretary
Mumbai
August 31, 2019
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Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Statement of change in equity
Jor the year ended 31 March 2019

(Rs. in millions)

(a2)

(b)

Equity share capital
|Particulars Note Amount|
Balance as at March 31, 2017 13 402.63
Changes in equity share capital during 2017-18 1,345.00
Balance as at March 31, 2018 13 1,747.63
Changes in equity share capital during 2018-19 -
Balance as at March 31, 2019 13 1,747.63
Other Equity
for the year ended March 31, 2018
Particulars Equity Reserves and Surplus Other Total
Contribution Comprehensive
Income
Securities Retained R
Premium earnings of Actuarial gain
and losses
Balance at the April 1, 2017 2,766.43 4,032.37 (2,981.37) 2.86 3,820.29
Other comprehensive income - - - (0.85) (0.85)
Re-measurements of employee stock option cost at fair value 11,37 - - - 11.37
Loss for the year ended March 31, 2018 - - (544.18) - (544.18)
Balance as at March 31, 2018 2,777.80 4,032.37 (3,525.55) 2.01 3,286.63
for the year ended March 31, 2019
Particulars Equity Reserves and Surplus Other Total
Contribution Comprehensive
Income
Securities Retained
Premium earnings of Actuarial gain
and losses
Balance at the April 1, 2018 2,777.80 4,032.37 (3,525.55) 2.01 3,286.63
Other comprehensive income - - - (1.86) (1.86)
Resmeasnrements of emplayee stock option cort at fair value .21 622
Profit for the year ended March 31, 2019 - - 216.55 - 216.55
Balance as at March 31, 2019 2,784.02 4,032.37 (3,309.01) 0.15 3,507.53
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Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Statement of change in equity (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2019

(Rs. in millions)
(b)  Other Equity (Continued)
Nature and purpose of reserves;

Equity contribution :
Equity contribution consists of fair valuation of long term borrowings and cumulative redeemable preference shares received from parent company.

Securities premium:
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium received on issue of shares by the Company. The reserve can be utilised in sccordance with
the provision of Section 52(2) of Companics Act, 2013.

Retained earnings:

The cumulative gain or loss arising from operations which is retained by the Company is recognised and accumulated under the heading of retained
camings. At the end of the year, the profit / (loss) after tax is transferred from the statement of profit and loss to the retained earnings account.

Remeasurement of defined benefit (liability)/ asset:
Remeasurements of defined benefit (liabilityVasset comprises actuarial gains and Josses and return on plan assets (excluding interest income).
Significant accounting policies 3
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Banwarl Lal Jatia Arora Namhiar
Director Director

Membership No: 100060
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o
% Suresh Lakshminarayanan Radha Jain
August 31,2019 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Mumbai
August 31, 2019
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Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2019

(Rs. in millions)

1 Company background

Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated on August 7, 1995. The Company is engaged in operating McDonalds’
chain of restaurants in the West and South Regions of India.

2 Basis of preparation

A

Statement of compliance

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act 2013, (the 'Act) and the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards)Amendment Rules 2016 and other provisions of the Act, to the extent notified and applicable as well as applicable guidance note and
pronouncements of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT).

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an
existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on August 31, 2019.

Details of the Company's accounting policies are included in Note 3.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company's functional currency. All financial information
presented in Indian rupee has been rounded to the nearest million unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

Items Measurement basis

Fair value of plan assets less present value of

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability less present value of defined obligations
defined benefit plan

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when
itis:

- Expeeted to he realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to scttle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when it is:

- Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

- held primarily for the purpose of trading,

- due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The company classities all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company
has identified twelve months s its operating cycle.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind ASs, requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in
change in future periods.
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Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2019

(Rs. in millions)

2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

D

Current versus non-current classification (Continued)
Assumptions and estimation uncertainties (Continued)

Valuation of deferred tax assets
The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. Contingent assets are neither
recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active
markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values.
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could
affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Defined benefit

The Company's gratuity plan is a defined benefit plan. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is based on actuarial valuation using
the projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed
at each reporting date.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial
assets and liabilities. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of u principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
The Company engages with external valuers for measurement of fair values in the absence of quoted prices in active markets.

Significant valuation issues are reported to the Company’s audit committee. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

‘When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible, If the inputs used to
measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised
in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. The Company
recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as property plant and equipment, and significant liabilities, such as gratuity
and Employee stock option plan.




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2019

(Rs. in millions)

2 Basis of preparation (Continued)
F  Measurement of fair values (Continued)

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. This note summarises accounting policy for fair
value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

- Financial instruments (Refer note 28)
- Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (Refer note 28)
- Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (Refer note 28)

- Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (Refer note 28)

3 Significant accounting policies
a Revenue recognition

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 : Revenue from contracts with customers which establishes a comprehensive
framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognised. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 revenue. There is no
impact of the adoption of the standard on the financial statements of the Company.

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, after deduction of any trade discounts, volume rebates and any
taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government such as goods and services tax, etc. Revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is
highly probable a significant reversal will not occur.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured, regardless of when the payment is made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into
account contractually defined terms of payment and net of taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Company has concluded
that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligation in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing
latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks.

Sales tax / value added tax (VAT) / goods service tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on
value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Sale of products

Revenue for food items is recognised when sold to the customer over the counter. Revenue on sale of other goods is recognised when significant
FISKS and rewards of ownershup of goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods.

Sale of products - customer loyalty programme (deferred revenue)

For customer loyalty programmes, the fair value of the consideration received or receivable in respect of the initial sale is allocated between the
award credits and the other components of the sale. The amount allocated to award credits is deferred and is recognised as revenue when the
award credits are redeemed and the Company has fulfilled its obligations to supply the discounted products under the terms of the programme or
when it is no longer probable that the award credits will be redeemed.

The deferred income related to loyalty credits granted has been estimated with reference to the fair value of products for which they could be
redeemed. This is because the fair value of loyalty credits is not directly observable. The fair value of the customers' right to buy products at a
discount for which the loyalty credits can be redeemed takes into account the amount of discount available to customers who have earned the
loyalty credits remaining unutilised and the expected forfeiture rate.

Other operating income
Franchisce income, space rental and alliance income and conducting fees are recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with terms of relevant
agreement.

Other Income

Interest income from debt instruments is recognized using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividends are recognised in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2019

(Rs. in millions)
3 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

b Property, plant and equipment

1 Ttems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to
its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located. Further contribution received from landlords in respect of leaschold improvements carried out to leasehold premises is deducted
from leasehold improvement cost.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of property, plant and equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

2 Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to
the Company.

3 Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful
lives using the straight-line method, and is generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Asset Management estimate of useful lives Useful life as per Schedule IT
Building 28 years 28 years
Leasehold improvements (others) 15 years 15 years

Leasehold improvements (office) 9 years 9 years

Restaurant Equipments 5-10 years 5-10 years

Ottice equipiicit 5 ycars 3 years

Furniture and fixtures 5-10 years 10 years
Computers 3 years 3 years

Vehicles 4 years 4 years

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at cach financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate. Based on
technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the
period over which management expects to use these assets.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date on which asset is ready for use (disposed of).

4 Intangible azsets
The uacful livea of intangible nsscta are nssessed no either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets acquired separately arc measured on initial recognition at cost. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the
asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms
part of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Initial location & license fees for stores opened up to May 15, 2010, are amortised on a straight line basis over a period of twenty years. For
stores opened after May 15, 2010, Initial location & license fees are amortised on a straight line basis over the remaining period of the
Master Franchise Agreement.
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Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2019

(Rs. in millions)
3 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
b Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

4 Intangible assets (Continued)
The Company only has software as an intangible asset having a useful life of 5 years.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible assct are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

c Investment properties

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of
business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for adminstrative purposes. Investment property is 1 d initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequently to initial recognition, investment property is measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is recognised in profit or loss. .

Asset Management estimate of useful lives Useful life as per Schedule IT

Building 28 years 28 years

d  Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of materials has been determined on first-in-first out basis (FIFO). Cost
of inventories comprises of all cost of purchase and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to its present location and condition. The
comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item by item basis. The Company periodically assesses the inventory for obsolescence
and slow moving stocks.

3 Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

State governed Provident Fund, ESIC and Labour Welfare Fund is considered as defined contribution plan and contributions thereto are charged
to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year as they are incurred. There are no other obligations, other than the contribution payable to the
respective funds,

A defined contrbution plan 10 a poot smployment heneht plan under which an entity pays fined contributions and will have no legal o
constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered
provident fund scheme, Ubligations tor contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or
loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available,

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of
defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have eamned in the current
and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair valug of anv nlan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the
calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the
form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan (‘the asset ceiling”). In order to calculate the present
valne of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and
the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The Company determines the
net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net
defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses
related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service (‘past service cost’

or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in statement of profit or loss. The Company recognises gains
and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Short-term employee benefit

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of
past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.
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Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Rs. in millions)
3 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
e Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions

Westlife Development Limited (‘WDL’ or the ‘Holding Company’) has established an employee stock option scheme (‘the Scheme') which
covers certain eligible employees of the subsidiary Company i.e Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited. During the year ended March 31, 2019,
an employee stock option plan (ESOP) was in existence. The holding company measures the cost of ESOP using the intrinsic value method and
recovers this amount from the Company. However the Company is accounting basis fair value method and the difference between fair value and
intrinsic value is taken to other equity and the corresponding debit is recorded in the statement of profit and loss.

f Foreign currency transactions

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing on the dates of the transactions or
an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate on the
date of the transaction. Exchange differences are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

g Income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to an item
recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received
after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. Current tax assets
and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the
asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultancously.

Current tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Minimum alternate tax (‘MAT’) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The company recognizes MAT credit
available as an assct only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified
period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognises MAT credit as an
asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Altemative Tax under the Income tax
Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and is included in Deferred Tax Assets. The Company
reviews the same at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay
normal tax during the specified period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and
tax credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temporaray differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilites in a transaction that is not a business combination and that
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.
The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent
losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax assets only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporarity differences or there is
convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be availabe against which the deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets -
unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised reduced to the extent that it is probable / no longer probable
respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.
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3 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
g  Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or
settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period that
includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date.

h  Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at
a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

i Impairment

(i) Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:
- financial assets measured at amortised cost; and
- financial assets measured at FVTPL- debt investments.

At cach reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt securities at FVOCI are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
- a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for one year or more;
- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise;
- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation; or
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the following, which are measured

as 12 month expected credit losses:
- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
- bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased

significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade reccivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are possible within 12 months

after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).
In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which the

Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating
capeted cicdit lusses, Uie Cownpairy wonisidus icasuiidble aid suppuitable Lifuitiadui diat Is ielevasic aud avallable wilivat uidye Lost ui
cffort. This includes Loth yuantitative and yualitative Dufousation aud aualysls, based on die Cuipauy’s lilstoileal eapetlence aud ufoied

credit assessment and inclnding forward- looking information.
‘Ihe Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past due.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:
- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to actions such as

realising security (if any is held); or
- the financial asset is one year or more past due.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive).

Sth Fioar,
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2019
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3 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
i Impairment (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial instruments (Continued)
Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets. For debt
securities at FVTPL, the loss allowance is charged to the statement of profit and loss.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be
subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

(ii) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each
CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGU:s.

The Company's corporate assets do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable
amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting date whether
there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognived

i Earnings per share

‘IThe basic earmings per share 1s computed by dividing the net profit attributable to owner's of the company for the year by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during reporting period.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of
all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

Dilutive potential equity shares arc deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they have been issued at a later date. In
computing diluted canings pu shaie, valy puleatial wyuity shiaes tial ae dilutive and which citlic iduees caniings poi shiae ui lucicase loss
per share are included.

k  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprises of cash at bank and in hand and short term investments with original maturity of three
months or less.

1 Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature
and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated.

m  Leases

1 Asalessee
Lease payments
Payments made under operating leases are generally recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless
such payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost
increases. Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the
outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability.
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3 Significant accounting policies (Conitnued)
m  Leases (Continued)

2 Asalessor
Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term
unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost
increases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

n Contributed equity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

o Financial instruments

i Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

ii  Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- amortised cost;
- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT) - debt investment;
- FVOCI - equity investment; or
-FVTPL
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business
model for managing financial assets.
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
A debt investment is measured at FVOCL if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVIPL:
— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial

assets; and
— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI — equity investment). This election is made on an investment- by- investment
basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all
derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at an individual asset level
because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The information considered
includes:

— the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include whether management’s
strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial
assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

— how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

— the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and how those risks

are managed;
— how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or the

contractual cash flows collected; and
— the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about future

sales activity.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.
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3 Significant accounting policies (Conitnued)

o Financial instruments (Continued)

i

Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)

Fii ial assets: A whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined
as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular
period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin,

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers the contractual terms
of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of
contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

— contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

—terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

— prepayment and extension features; and

= terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (¢.g. non- recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount substantially
represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional
compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its
contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount
plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated
as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income,

at FVTPL are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is|

cost reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the effective interest method, foreign

FVOCI exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in
OCL. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at These asscts are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the

™ot slivitlennl vlearly repmevenis w recovery of gt of (e cont of the Invevument. Other net galne und lugeer uee revognleed In
OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

The Company does not have financial assets measured at FVOCL

Financtal liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as
held- for- trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair
value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in statement of profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are
ranngniced in profit or loge. Any goin or loas on deravsgnition is alos ressgnissd in statement of profit ar loss.

Derecognition
Financial assels

The Company derccogniscs a financial asscl wlicn tic contiactual iights o tie casl Muws fon e Riancial assel eapite, ut 1 tanslers e
rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which suhstantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset are transterred or in which the Company neither transters nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does
not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all
of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are
substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in statement of
profit or loss.
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o Financial instruments (Continued)

iv Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company
currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultancously.The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

P Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income carned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

q  Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
management assesses the financial performance and position of the Company and makes strategic decisions. The chief operating decision maker
consists of the Chairman and whole time directors of the Company.

T Recent Accounting Pronoucements

Standards issued but not effective

In March, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards), Sccond Amendment Rules, 2019, notifying Ind AS 116 "Leases” and amendments are applicable to
the Company with effect from April 01, 2019.

Ind AS 116, "Leases"

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116, Leases which will replace the existing leases Standard, Ind AS 17
Teases, and related Tnterpretations. The Standard rete out the principles for the recognition, mencurement, precentation and dicclosure of learer
for both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognize assets and linhilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. A lessee will have
to recognize right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease
payments. The nature of expenses related to those leases will change from leasc rent in previous periods to a) amortization change for the right-
to-use asset, and b) interest accrued on lease liability. The standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees.

The Company will adopt Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting period beginning April 1, 2019. The Company will apply the standard to its
leases using modified retrospective approach i.e. the right of use assets will be equal to lease liability as at the transition date and consequently
there will be no impact on net worth. Accordingly, comparatives for the year ended March 31, 2019 will not be retrospectively adjusted. In
accordance with the standard, the Company will elect not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to short-term leases and leases for which the
underlying asset is of low value.

On transition, the Company will be using practical expedients provided in the standard and therefore, will not reassess whether a contract, is or
contains a lease, at the date of initial application.

On transition date, the Company will recognise a Right of use asset (an amount equal to Lease liability adjusted by prepaid lease rent of Rs.
229.31 million) of Rs.7,226.66 million and a Lease liability of Rs, 6,997.36 million.

Ind AS 12 — Income taxes (amendments relating to income tax consequences of dividend and uncertainty over income tax treatments)

The amendment relating to income tax consequences of dividend clarify that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends
in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events. The
Company does not expect any impact from this pronouncement. It is relevant to note that the amendment does not amend situations where the
entity pays a tax on dividend which is effectively a portion of dividends paid to taxation authorities on behalf of shareholders. Such amount paid
or payable to taxation autherities continues 1o be charged to equity as part of dividend, in accordance with Ind AS 12. The amendment to
Appendix C of Ind AS 12 specifies that the amendment is to be applied to the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. It outlines the following: (1) the
entity has to use judgement, to determine whether each tax treatment should be considered separately or whether some can be considered
together.
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3 Significant accounting policies (Conitnued)
r Recent Accounting Pronoucements (Continued)

Ind AS 12 - Income taxes (amendments relating to income tax consequences of dividend and uncertainty over income tax treatments)
(Continued)

The decision should be based on the approach which provides better predictions of the resolution of the uncertainty (2) the entity is to assume
that the taxation authority will have full knowledge of all relevant information while examining any amount (3) entity has to consider the
probability of the relevant taxation authority accepting the tax treatment and the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates would depend upon the probability. The Company does not expect any significant impact of the
amendment on its financial statements.

Ind AS 23 — Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale, that
borrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows generally when calculating the capitalisation rate on general borrowings. The
Company does not expect any impact from this amendment
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Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Rs. in millions)
4 Property, Plant, Equipments and Other Intangible Assets (Continued)

B Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress mainly comprises of upcoming restaurants and restaurants under construction.

C Reclassification to Investment property

The Company has rented out an identifiable part of its restaurant to earn rental income. On transition date, the Company has reclassified such portion of restaurant in investment property, considering that the future use is not
determined. After initial recognition, the Company has measured its investment property at cost.

Investment Property e

Reconciliation of Carrying Amount

Cost Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2017 7.51
Additions 0.52
Balance as at March 31, 2018 8.03
Balance as at March 31, 2019 8.03
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at March 31, 2017 0.67
Offset on Transfer of Building to 0.13
Investment Property
Additions (Refer note 25) 0.67
Balance as at March 31, 2018 1.46
Additions (Refer note 25) 0.66
Balance as at March 31, 2019 212
Carrying Amounts (Net)
Balance as at March 31, 2018 6.58
—_—
Balance as at March 31, 2019 5.91
_ |
Fair Value
Balance as at March 31, 2018 6.58
—_—
Balance as at March 31, 2019 591




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Rs. in millions)

4

Property, Plant, Equipments and Other Intangible Assets (Continued)
C Reclassification to Investment property (Continued)
Reconciliation of Carrying Amount (Continued)

Amount recognised in profit and loss for investment properties

Particulars For year ended For year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Rental income derived from investment properties 4.32 4.43
Less : Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) 0.75 0.26
Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation and indirect 3.57 4.17
Less : Depreciation 0.66 0.67
Profit arising from investment properties before indirect expenses 291 3.50

Description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation on investment properties

|Particulars Valuation Fair Value
Technique (See March March
Note below) 31,2019 31,2018
Land Stamp duty 41.28 41.28
reckoner rate

The above valuation of the investment properties are in accordance with the Ready Reckoner rates prescribed by the
publications and government website for Ready Reckoner rates. The adjustments related to floors,

Government of Maharashtra for the purpase of levying stamp duty, The management has referred to the

lifts and other “actors are not considerac for valuation of commer=ial property.

Mumboal
India




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Rs. in millions)

5

Investments

Investment in mutual funds at Fair Value through Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Non trade

a) Investments in Mutual Funds (unquoted)

Face Value of Rs. 100 each

Nil (Previous Year 262,981.63) units of Birla Sunlife Floating Rate Fund Short Term plan-Growth-Regular Plan

5,000,000 ( Previous year 5,000,000) units of HDFC FMP 1309D September 2016 (1) Series 37 Regular Plan Growth

Nil (Previous Year 20,000,000 ) units of HDFC FMP 1161 Days Feb 2016 (1) Growth

Nil (Previous Year 14,518,585) units of ICICI Prudential FMP series 79-1218 days Plan A- Cumulative

10,000,000 (Previous year 10,000,000) units of HDFC FMP 1188 D March-2017- Series 38- Regular Plan- Growth

25,000,000 (Previous Year Nil ) units of HDFC FMP 1161 Days Feb 2016 (1) Growth of Rs. 13.21 each (Previous Year Rs, Mil)

5,000,000 (Previous Year Nil) Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund- XXXI - Series 2 - Growth Plan of Rs. 12.62 each (Previous Yezr Rs, Nil)
14,518,585 (Previous Year Nil) units of ICICI Prudential FMP Series 79 - 1218 Days Plan A Cumulative of Rs. 12.74 each (Previous Year Rs. Nil)
15,900,000 ( Previous year Nil) units of DSP Blackrock Fixed Maturity Plan Series of Rs, 11.41 each.(Previous Year Nil)

Face Value of Rs, 10 each

14,685.41 (Previous Year Nil) units of HDFC Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth Option of Rs. 3,679.01 each (Previous Year Rs. Ni)
123,820.5540 (Previous Year Nil) units of Aditya Birla Sun Life Overnight Fund - Regular Plan - Growth of Rs. 1,025 each (Frevious Year Rs. Nil)

Non-Current
Asat As at
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

7297 56.99
- 306.89

- 171.39
115.32 108.06

Current
Asat

As at

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

60.77




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Rs. in millions)

5 Investments (Continued)

b)

Non trade

Investment in structured products (unquoted)
Debt

Nil (Previous Year 18,227,685) units of IIFL Dynamic Bond Fund Growth Regular of Rs. Nil (Previous Year Rs. 13.715 each)

Nil (Previous Year 4,816,000) units of ICICI Prudential Fixed Maturity Plan - Series 76 - 1185 Days - Plan H - Regular Plan - Growth of Rs. Nil (Previous Year Rs. 13.33
each)

400,502.327 (Previous Year 1,392,447.37) units of HDFC Equity Savings Fund- Direct Plan- Growth Option of Rs.37.45 each (Previous Year Rs. 35.91 each)
Nil ( Previous year 1,000) units of Ecap Equities Limited of Rs. Nil (Previous Year Rs. 101,507 each)

Nil (Previous Year 50,000,000) Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund- XXXI - Series 2 - Growth Plan of Rs. Nil (Previcus Year Rs. 11,633 each)

100 (Previous Year 100) units of ITFL. Wealth Finance Ltd. of Rs, 1,206,500 each (Previous Year Rs. 1,037,056 each)

50 (Previous Year 50) units of State Bank of India 8.15% BD Perpetual of Rs. 966,048 each (Rs. 970,822 each)

Nil (Previous Year 800) units of IIFL Wealth Finance Ltd. of Rs.Nil (Previous Year Rs. 100,000 each)

50 (Previous Year 50) units of ICICI Bank Limited SR- DMR17 AT 9.2% BD Perpetual of Rs. 999,004 each (Previous Year s, 999,004 each.)

50 (Previous Year 50) units of 8.75% AXIS Bank Limited SR-26 NCD Perpetual of Rs, 962,158 each (Previous Year Rs. 982,256 each),

50 (Previous Year 50) units of 8.85% HDFC Bank Base ITI Perpetual Bond Series I of Rs. 988,929 each (Previous Year Rs. #95,848 each.)

Nil ( Previous year 1,59,00,000) units of DSP Blackrock FMP Series of Rs. Nil (Previous Year Rs. 11.655 each)

10,000,000 (Previous Year Nil) units of HDFC Fixed Maturity Plan - 1124 days - June, 2018 (1)- Direct Plan - Growth of Rs. 10.44 each (Previous Year Rs. Nil)
140 (Previous Year Nil) units of India Infoline Finance Limited SR C-12 of Rs. 1,047,600 each (Previous Year Rs. Nil)

128 (Previous Year Nil) units of Kotak Mahindra Investments Limited Series 024 NCD of Rs.774,691 each (Previous Year R:. Nil)

100 (Previous year Nil) units of Zero Coupon Aditya Birla Finance Limited G2 NCD of Rs. 1,046,798 each (Previous Year R:. Nil)

14,519 (Previous Year Nil) units of Axis Banking & PSU Debt- Growth of Rs. 1,746.98 each (Previous Year Rs. Nil)

1,583,451.377 (Previous Year Nil) units of IDFC Banking & PSU Debt Regular- Growth of Rs. 16.07 each (Previous Year Re. Nil)

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments

Non-Current
As at As at
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

Current
As at As at
March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018

= s 2 253.72

" 2 i 64.32

. i 15.63 50.29

. . : 106.45

“ 58.38 3 8

121.68 110.40 ) :
51.03 5161 : -

. 88.89 " -
49.60 51.55 - =
50.03 50.41 . 5
5331 53.98 - 3

- 185.79 5 =
104.75 e : .
147.17 - - .
100.17 - . "
104.83 . < :

- Z 2537 5

. e 25.46 =
970.86 1,294.34 1,008.05 535.55
970.86 1,294,34 1,008.05 535.55




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Rs. in millions)

6 Loans
Non-current Current
Particulars Asat Asat Asat As al
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
(Unsecured, considered good)
Security deposits to lessors* 380.49 321.50 3.26 9.45
Security deposits to others 4290 41.46 o -
Loan to others 9.97 27.31 12,60 13.91
Total 433.36 390.27 15.86 23.36
* Security deposits to lessors include Rs. 35 million (Previous Year Rs 35 million) deposit given to related party (refer note 32)
7  Financial assets - Others
Non-current Current
Particulars As at As at Asat As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(Unsccured, considered good)
Bank deposits with original maturity beyond 12 months 0.13 2,03 - -
Leasehold improvements contributions receivable - - 29.71 27.10
Interest accrued on fixed deposits - - 8.16 0.12
Interest accrued on Investments - - 0.27 10.11
Other receivables 41.81 - 37.49 28.38
Total 41.94 2.03 75.63 65.71
8 Other assets
Non-current Current
Particulars As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
(Unsecured, considered good)
Capital advances 103.68 39.21 - -
Advances other than capital advances
Prepaid expenses 239,39 286.47 94.21 51.64
Advance to employees - - 2.16 2.05
Advance to supplicr ** - - 44.73 3152
Balances with government authoritics 161.20 189.31 = =
WAL CrediL edutgnient - " 158 -
504.27 514.99 176.35 85.21

*# Advance to suppliers includes Rs. 7.29 million (Previous Year Rs. 5.98 million) advance given to related party (refer note 32).

9 Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Particulars

Raw materials
Rs. 17.42 million)

Year Rs. 2.51 million)
Toys & Premiums

million (Previous Year Rs. 0.38 million)
Total

Food items (includes goods in transit Rs. 2.00 million (Previous Year

Paper Products (includes goods in transit Rs. 0.47 million (Previous

Stores, spares & consumables (includes goods in transit Rs. 0.14

Current

Asat As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
21242 195.41

78.92 60.36

90.17 5223

28.43 28.82

409.94 336.82

For details of security refer note 17

5th
Lodna
Qg (Apolio Minis
N.M Jo

Manal
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Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2019

(Rs. in millions)

10 Trade receivables

Current
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018|
(Unsecured, considered good)
Trade receivables 97.59 64.31
Total 97.59 64.31

For details of security refer note 17
Trade receivables includes Rs. 0.02 million (Previous Year Rs.0.03 million) receivable from related party (refer note 32).

11  Cash and Bank Balances

Current

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
— On current accounts 10.70 32.81
Cash on hand 78.09 76.22
Other bank balances
— Deposits with remaining maturity for less than 12 months** 1.93 0.03
Total 90.72 109.06

** includes fixed deposits with lien in favour of statutory authorities Rs. 0.77 million (Previous Year Rs. Nil).

12 Income tax assets (net)

Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Advance tax including tax deducted at source 69.89 43.98
bY.89 43.98

ound,
7
(Y

£ )

o

.
4
NG




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Confinued)
for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Rs. in millions)

13 Share Capital

As at As at
March 31 2019 March 31 2018
Authorised Shares
1,765,000 (March 31, 2018 : 1,765,000) equity shares of Rs 1,000 1,765.00 1,765.00
cach
1,765.00 1,765.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up equity shares
1,747,628 (March 31, 2018: 1,747,628) equity Shares of Rs. 1,000 1,747.63 1,747.63
cach fully paid up
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up equity share capital 1,747.63 1,747.63

Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity shares

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Particulars No. of shares (Rs. in millions) No. of shares (Rs. in millions),
At the beginning of the year 1,747,628 1,747.63 402,628 402.63
Add : Issued during the year - - N -
Add : Conversion of Cumulative Redecmable Preference shares into - - 1,345,000 1,345.00
equity *
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,747,628 1,747.63 1,747,628 1,747.63

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equily shares having par value of Rs 1,000 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share. The Company declares and pay dividends in Indian rupees.In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be
entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the

number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

* The Company had issued 1,345,000 Cumulative redeemable preference shares (CRPS) of Rs. 1,000 each to its holding company in earlier year.
During the previous year, pursuant to the approval obtained from the holders of the CRPS, the Company has converted the CRPS into 1,345,000

equity shares of Rs. 1,000 each.

Shares held by the holding company As at As at

March 31 2019 March 31 2018
Westlife Development Limited ( WDL)
1,747,628 (March 31, 2018 : 1,747,628) equity Shares of Rs. 1,000 1,747.63 1,747.63
cach fully paid up
Total 1,747.63 1,747.63
Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

Particulars No. of shares % Holding No. of shares % Holding
Equity Shares of Rs 1,000 each fully paid up
Westlife Development Limited (Holding Company) 1,747,627 99.995 1,747,627 99.99%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding
beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

The Company has not allotted any fully paid up equity shares by way of bonus shares nor has bought back any class of equity shares during the
period of 5 years immediately preceeding the balance sheet date nor has issued shares for consideration other than cash.




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Rs. in millions)

14  Other Financial Liabilities

Non-current Current

Particulars As at As at As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Sceurity deposits 7.09 3.42 4.21 4.66
Book overdrafts - - 0.32 18.64
Liability for capital expenditure - - 308.62 313.07
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - - 6.39 6.08
Employee related liabilities - - 334.65 328.54
Total 7.09 342 654,19 670.99

15  Provisions
Non-current Current

|Particulars As at As at As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for Gratuity (refer note 31) 24.11 15.00 55.39 54.27
Total 24.11 15.00 55.39 54.27

16  Deferred Tax assets / (liabilities)

Deferred Tax assets / (liabilities) are as follows :
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Deferred tax assets
Employee benefits 60.36 49.26
Other expenses 9.34 =
Unabsorbed depreciation losses - 174.52
ESOP amortisation at fair value 2.17 -
Net impact of fair valuation of security deposits 23.54 18.52 ™
Deferred tax liabilities /
Excess of depreciation provided in the books over depreciation (21.04) (36.99)
allowable under income tax laws
Investment carried out at fair value (3.04) (11.66)
Net impact of fair valnation of loan given (8.09) (6.40)
MAT credit entitlement - 35.25

63.24 222.50

Total




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Confinued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2019

(Rs. in millions)

17  Borrowings

Current

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Secured
Loan from Bank (refer note i, ii and iii below) 2,072.50 1,535.00
Unsecured
Loan from Bank (refer note iv and vi below) 255.00 300.00
Bank overdrafts (refer note v and vi below) 11.74 0.19
Total 2,339.24 1,835.19

i During the carlier year, the Company had availed a total facility of Rs. 1,151 million (Previous Year Rs. 1,151 million) from HDFC Bank Limited
and was converted into a mutually interchangeable overdraft facility of Rs. 200 million and short term loan facility of Rs. 951 million. This facility is
sanctioned for the purpose of financing operating capital expenditure. To avail this facilty, the Company has created an exclusive charge on the
credit / debit card receivables to the extent of Rs. 200 million by way of hypothecation. Interest charged at 8.15% p.a.- 8.70% p.a. (Previous Year
7.80% p.a.- 7.85% p.a.) is payable monthly. The overdraft facility is repayable on demand and short term loan facility is repayable within 180 days
with a cooling period of 2 days. As at March 31, 2019 the amount outstanding in respect of the said facility is Rs. 542.50 million (Previous Year Rs.
440 million).

ii The Company has availed a revolving short term loan facility of Rs. 1,775 million (Previous Year Rs. 1,776 million) from Australia and New
Zealand Banking Group Limited (ANZ Bank) for the purpose of financing operating capital expenditure. Interest is charged 8.05% p.a. to 8.60% p.a.
(Previous Year 7.40% p.a. to 8.25% p.a.). The loan is repayable within 180 days from the date of any drawdown. As at March 31, 2019 the amount
outstanding in respect of the said facility is Rs. 1,530 million (Previous Year Rs. 1,095 million). To avail those short term loan and overdraft facility,
the Company has created a first pari passu charge on the movable assets.

il The Company has availed a revolving short term loan facility of Rs. 300 million (Previous Year Rs. 300 million) from Development Bank of
Singapore for the purpose of financing operating capital expenditure. The Company has created a first pari-passu charge on all stock and book debts.
Interest is charged at 7.95% p.a. to 8.10% p.a. (Previous Year 7.75% p.a. to 7.80% p.a.). The loan is repayable on demand. As at March 31, 2019
the amount outstanding in respect of the said facility is Rs. Nil (Previous Year Rs. Nil).

iv The Company has availed a short term loan faciility of Rs. 300 million (Previous Year Rs.300 million) with Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd. at an interest
rate of 8% p.a. to B.60% p.a. (7.70% pa tn 8 10% pa) This shart term loan facility is for financing the working capital requirement and is
repayahle on demand  As at March 31, 2019 the amount outstanding in respect of the said facility is Re. 255 million (Previous Year Ra. 300 million).

v The Company has availed an overdraft facility of Rs. 200 million (Previous Year Rs. 200 million) with Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd at an interest rate
of 9.05% p.a. to 9.55% p.a.(Previous Year 9.45% p.a. to 10.50% p.a.). This overdraft facility is for financing the working capital requirement and is
repayable on demand. As at Mascli 31, 2019, tlie Comipaiy lias utilised Rs.11.74 million (Previous Year Rs. NII) under this faciliy.

vi During the year, the Company has availed an short term loan facility of Rs.500 million (Previous Year Rs.500 million) with Yes Bank Ltd. Interest is
charged at 8.10% p.a. (Previous Year 7.80% p.a. to 8.10% p.a.). The amount outstanding in respect of the said facility as at March 31, 2019 is Rs.
Nil (Previous Year Rs. Nil). This facility includes an overdraft facility of Rs 150 million (Previous Year Rs 150 million). During the year, the
company has not availed overdraft facility. During the previous year, interest charged on over draft facility was at 8.85% p.a. As at March 31, 2019,
the Company has utilised Rs. Nil (Previous Year Rs. 0.19 million).

18 Trade payables

— - ~ <
Current 4;". 4 ’
Particulars , As at As at I
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 [[ < [

Trade payahles (refer nate 40) i

+ Total dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.04 -

* Total dues to creditors other than micro enterprises ** 1,177.76 1,139.43
Total 1,177.80 1,139.43

** Trade payables include Rs. 0.37 million (Previous year Nil) payable to a related party (refer note 32)
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Rs. in millions)

19  Other current liabilities

Particulars Current
As at As a
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Statutory dues 96.43 104.30
Advance received from customer 5.00 5.00
Deferred revenue @ - 2.26
Other payables @ @ 96.50 91.57
Total 197.93 203.13

@ The deferred revenue of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2018 : Rs. 2.26 million) related to loyalty credits granted has been estimated with reference of the fair
value of the products for which they could be redeemed and the expected forfeiture rate.

@@ Other payables include Rs. 52.73 million (March 31, 2018 : Rs, 56.01 million) payable to a related party (refer note 32)

N.M

/’C’ 5th Fioor, -
/f =4/ Lodha Excolus, \
f (aa]
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Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Rs. in millions)

20 Revenue from operations

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Sales ( Refer Note 20.1 below) 13,887.03 11,255.31
Other Operating Revenue
a) Conducting Fees 2.50 2.04
b) Franchising Income 6.94 6.00
¢) Scrap Sales 19.11 12.19
d) Space Rental & alliances Income 27.30 37.35
¢) Miscellaneous Provisions written back 73.18 35.85
Total 14,016.06 11,348.74
20.1 Details of Sales
Food 9,525.60 7,766.53
Beverages, Desserts, Others 4,361.43 3,488.78
Total 13,887.03 11,255.31

a) For revenuc from sale of products, the reconciliation of contract price to revenue from sale of products is as below:

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Contract price 13,887.03 11,255.31
Less : Trade Discount, volume rebates etc. - -
13,887.03 11,255.31

21 Other income

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Interest Income on

- Bank Deposits 0.14 0.14

- Others 10.54 25.78
Gain on investments # 115.89 144.59
Insurance claim received 4.00 20.61
[Miscellaneous income 5.82 4.03
Total 136.39 195.15

#includes gain / (loss) booked on fair valuation of investments

21 Coot of Materials Consumcd

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Inventory at the beginning of the year 308.00 248.79
Add: Purchases during the year 5,189.39 4,360.91
5,497.39 4,609.70
Less: Inventory at end of the year (381.52) (308.00)
Total 5,115.87 4,301.70
22.1 - Details of Cost of materials consumed
Food 4,427.07 3,770.19
Paper 579.00 442.06
Toys & Premiums 109.80 89.45

Total 5,115.87 4,301.70
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Notes to the financial statements (Confinued)
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(Rs. in millions)

23

25

Employee benefits expense

For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Salaries, wages and bonus 1,623.58 1,400.63
Contribution to provident and other funds 136.21 132.38
Employee stock compensation expense (refer note 834 27.59
41)
Gratuity (refer note 31) 18.44 18.03
Staff welfare expenses 187.95 147.01
Total 1,974.52 1,725.64
Finance Cost

For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Interest on
- Borrowings 167.66 191.06
- Bank overdraft 6.22 11.98
- Others 0.54 1.12
Loss on conversion of cumulative redeemable - 849.46
preference shares into equity share capital
Bank Charges 2.90 1.61
Total 177.32 1,055.23
Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars # March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment 741.50 615.04
Depreciation on Investment properties 0.66 0.67
Amortisation of intangible assets 54.97 S6.86
Total 797.13 672.57

# Refer Note 4
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Rs. in millions)

26  Other expenses

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Electricity Utilities 892.14 82274
Gas Utilities 151.40 120.64
Other Utilities 53.31 45.57
Conducting Charges 1,289.38 1,034.47
Logistics service charges 211.68 167.68
Marketing and promotions 693.04 577.53
Royalty Fee 641.36 476.66
Maintenance & Repairs - Restaurant Equipments 267.88 217.79
Maintenance & Repairs - Others 165.96 141.49
Operating Supplies at Stores 193.36 174.15
Travelling and conveyance 76.88 63.11
Legal & Professional Fees 104.28 91.88
(Refer Note 26.1 below)

Rent 52.78 46.74
Sundry balances written off 9.83 =
Loss on sale / write off of property, plant 56.07 71.37
and equipment

Training and Development Expenses 50.25 41.57
Communication costs 41.63 3351
Rates & Taxes 18.97 18.85
Insurance ' 13.60 12.68
Exchange differences (net) 224 0.81
Miscellancous Expenses 746.44 418.34
Total 5,732.48 4,571.58
Note 26.1:

Payment to auditors

As auditor :

Audit fees 4.63 4.14
In other capacity

Certification matters 0.03 0.09
Reimhursement of expenses N5 nn&
Total 4.91 4.29

27 Tax Expense

A Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended|
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

(a) Current tax 13.63 -

(b) Deferred tax charge / (credit)

Employee benefits (10.16) (1.72)
Unabsorbed depreciation losses 174.52 45.85
Other expenses 9.34) =
Excess of depreciation provided in the books over (15.95) (6.58)
|depreciation allowable under income tax laws

Ind AS adjustments

Cumulative redeemable preference shares carried out - (279.50)
at fair value

ESOP amortisation at fair value 217 =
Net impact of fair valuation of security deposits (5.02) (1.40)
Net impact of fair valuation of loan given L70

Investment carried at fair value (8.63) (1.11)
| Amortisation of finance cost under effective interest - (0.18)
method

Total tax charge / (credit) 138.58 (244.65)
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
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(Rs. in millions)

27 Tax Expense (Continued)

B Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate :

|Particulars For the year ended For the year ended]
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018

Profit / (Loss) before tax 355.13 (788.83)

Tax at the Indian Rate (a) 124.08 (263.31)|

Effects of tax charge / (credit) on account of

temporary difference

Others 13.56 18.66

Sub-total (b) 13.56 18.66

Total charge as per statement of profit and loss (a) + 137.65 (244.65)

(b)

Note : There is no current tax liability for the previous year on account of brought forward unabsorbed depreciation from previous years.

Movement in temporary differences

Particulars Balance as at April Recognised in  Recognised in OCI Reclassified as Balance as at|
01, 2018 profit or loss during 2018-19 Current Assets March 31, 2019
during
201R8-19
Employee benefits 49.26 (10.16) 0.94 60.36
'Unabsorbed depreciation losses 174.52 174.52 =
Excess of depreciation provided in the books over (36.99) (15.95) (21.04)
depreciation allowable under income tax laws
Net impact of fair valuation of security deposits 12.13 (3.32) 15.45
and loans given
ESOP amortisation at fair value - (217 217
Investment carried at fair value (11.66) (8.63) (3.03)
Other expenses - (9.34) 9.34
MAT credit entitlement 35.25 (35.25) -
Total 222.50 124.95 0.94 (35.25) 63.24
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28  Fair Value Measurement
a Financial instruments by category

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2018 were as follows:

|Particulars Amortised cost Mandatory Total carrying Total fair value
value

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 109.06 - 109.06 109.06
Investments - 1,829.89 - 1,829.89
Trade receivables 64.31 - 64.31 64.31
Loans 413.63 - 413.63 413.63
Other financial assets 67.74 - 67.74 67.74
Total 654,74 1,829.89 654.74 2,484.63
Liabilities:

Borrowings 1,835.19 - 1,835.19 1,835.19
Trade payables 1,139.43 - 1,139.43 1,139.43
Other financial liabilities 67441 - 674.41 674.41
Total 3,649.03 - 3,649.03 3,649.03

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2019 were as follows:

Particulars Amortised cost Mandatory Total carrying  Total fair value
value
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 90.72 - 90.72 90.72
Investments - 1,978.91 - 1,978.91
Trade receivahles L] P7.EP P7.E0
Loans 449.22 - 449.22 449.22
Other financial assets 117.57 - 117.57 117.57
Total 755.10 1,978.91 755.10 2,734.01
Liabilities:
Borrowings 2,339.24 - 2,339.24 2,339.24
Trade payables 1,177.76 - 1,177.76 1,177.76
Other financial liabilitics 661.28 - 661.28 661.28
Total 4,178 78 . 41788 4,178 78|

The Company has not disclosed the fair values for financial instruments such as cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, trade receivables,
other financial assets because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value.
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28  Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

b Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgement and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are

a) recognised and measured at fair value.

b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial
instruments into three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level is mentioned below :

Level 1 - Level | hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, traded
bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock
exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the counter
derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on
entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the
case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3.

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis :

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 Fair value measurement at end of the reporting year using
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assels
Investments in mutual funds 1,829.89 - 1,829.89 -
Particulars As at March 31, Fair value measurement at end of the reporting year using
2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets
Investments in mutual funds 1,978.91 - 1,978.91 -

Valuation technique and significant unobservable inputs

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 fair values for financial instruments measured at fair value in
the balance sheet, as well as the significant unobservable inputs used.

Financial Instruments Measurement Fair Value

Type Investments

Valuation technique Fair values are based on prices as stated by the issuer's of mutual funds.
Significant observable inputs Not applicable

Inter relationship between significant observable inputs  Not applicable

and fair value measurement
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29  Financial Risk Management

Financial Risk

In the course of its business, the Company is exposed to a number of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk . This note presents the
Company’s objectives, policies and processes for managing its financial risk and capital. The key risks and mitigating actions are also placed before the
Board of Directors of the Company. The Company’s risk gement policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk 2 policies and are reviewed regularly to reflect

changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities.

The Company manages the risk through the finance department that ensures that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies
and proced and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives, The activities
are designed to:

- protect the Company’s financial results and position from financial risks

- maintain market risks within acceptable p while optimising returns; and

- protect the Company’s financial investments, while maximising returns.

A Credit Risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the company. Credit risk arises on
liquid assets, financial assets, trade and other receivables.
In respect of its investments the Company aims to minimize its financial credit risk through the application of risk management policies.
Trade receivables are subject to credit limits, controls and approval processes. Basis the historical experience, the risk of default in case of trade receivable
is low. Provision is made for doubtful receivables on individual basis depending on the customer ageing, customer category, specific credit circumstances
and the historical experience of the Company.
The C has trade receivables amounting to Rs. 97.59 millions as at 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018 - Rs. 64.31 millions). There are no significant

amounts due by more than 180 days and not provided for. Management believes that these are still collectible in full, based on historical payment behaviour
and extensive analysis of customer credit risk.

The Company also has an exposure in respect of other financial assets, viz; cash and cash equivalents, fixed deposits with banks, loans, security deposits
and others.

Security deposits are interest free deposits given by the Company for properties taken on lease. Provision is taken on a case to case basis depending on
circumstances with respect to non recoverability of the amount. The gross carrying amount of security deposits is as follows :

(Rs. in million),
As at March 31, 2019 383.75
As at March 31, 2018 33095

(Refer note 6)

Loans, security deposits and investments :

Expected credit loss for loans, security deposits and investments #

Particulars Year Ended Asset Group Estimated  Expected Expected Carrying
gross carrying probability of credit losses  amount, net of]
amount at default impairment|
delauit Pruvisivi
Luss alluwaiiee icasuiid au LL isoisdi Pluduilal asses  31-U3-2019 LU 22.3) U - Li)
cxpected credit loss for which credit
risk has not
increased Security Deposits 426.65 0% - 426.65
significantly Investments 1,978.91 0% = 1,978.91
since initial
recognitinn
Loss allowance measured at 12 month Financial assets ~ 31-03-2018  Loans 41.22 0% - 4122
cxpected credit loss tor which credit
alsk lus ot
increased Security Depasits 37741 N - 37241
significantly Investments 1,829.89 0% - 1,829.89
since initial
recognition

# Refer Note 29 (A)
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29  Financial Risk Management (Continued)

B Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will cncounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilitics that are scttled by
delivering cash or another financial assct. The Company's corporate treasury department is responsible for liquidity and funding. In addition, processes and
policies related to such risks are o by senior 2
The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due without incurring

unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.
The Company is able to maintain the liquidity through sales realised across all the restaurants and use of bank overdrafts and bank loans

Maturity patterns of financial liabilities:

As at 31 March 2019 Less than 1 1 year - 2 years 2 years to 3 years 3 years and Total
year above

Borrowings 2,339.24 - - - 2,339.24

Trade payables 1,177.76 - - - 1,177.76

Other financial liabilities 661.28 - - - 661.28

Total 4,178.28 - - - 4,178.28

—

As at 31 March 2018 Lessthan | 1 year-2years 2 yearsto 3 years 3 years and Total
years above

Borrowings 1,835.19 - - - 1,835.19

Trade payables 1,139.43 - - - 1,139.43

Other financial liabilitics 674.41 - - - 674.41

Total 3,649.03 - = - 3,649.03

C Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices, which will affect the Company's
income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within

acceptable parameters, while optimising the retumn.

i) Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate becanse of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's
exposure to any currency risk is provided in the table below. The currencies in which the transactions are denominated is Indian Rupees. -

(Rs. Million)

Particulars As at March|  As at March

31,2019 31,2018
Adyances recoverahle in cash / kind 17 40 . ‘
(0.25 USD millions @ Rs.69.17) /
Trade payables (0.05 USD millions @ 3.56 -
Rs.69.17)
Trade receivables (0.10 USD millions| 6.92 =
@ Rs. 69.17)

i) Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows with respect to interest payments on borrowings will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Company’s interest rate risk arises from bank borrowings and overdrafts with variable rates. The Company adopts a policy to have its obligation

linked with fixed interest rate so that the Company does not have exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rate.

30 Cupltal Management

The Company’s objective for capital 1 gement is to hareholder value, safeguard business continuity and support the growth of the Company.
The Company determines the capital requirement based on annual operating plans and long-term and other strategic investment plans. The funding
requirements are met through loans and operating cash flows generated. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

The Company monitors capital using a ratio of ‘net debt’ to ‘equity’. For this purpose, net debt is defined as total interest bearing loans and borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents. Equity comprises all components of equity. The Company's debt to equity ratio as at March 31, 2019 was as follows :

Particulars Asat As at

March 31, March 31,2018

2019

 Total borrowings 233924 1,835.19
Less : Cash and cash Equivalents 90.72 109.06
Net debt 224852 1,726.13
Equity 5,255.16 5,034.26
Debt to Equity Ratio 043 0.34
In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital gement, gst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants

attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit
the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in

the current year.
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31  Disclosure Under Indian Accounting Standard 19 (Ind As 19) On Employee Benefits:

a) Defined Contribution Plan:
Amount recognised and included in Note 23 “Contribution to provident and other funds” - Rs. 136.21 million (Previous Year Rs. 132.38 million).

b) Defined Benefit Plan:

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15
days salary for each completed year of service subject to a maximum of Rs, 2 million. The Scheme is funded with Life Insurance Corporation in the
form of a qualifying insurance policy.

(i) Gratuity: Company has charged the Gratuity expense to Statement of Profit & Loss based on the actuarial valuation of gratuity liability at the
end of the year. The projected unit credit method used to show the position is as under.

| Assumptions As at Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets 6.76% 7.18%
Discount Rate 6.76% 7.18%
Salary Escalation 6.50% 6.50%
Attrition Rate :

Crew 30.00% 30.00%
Others 12.00% 12.00%

Mortality rate during employment as per Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08).

(if) Table showing change in present value of Projected Benefit Obligation:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Present value of Projected Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the year 77.92 64.76
Interest cost 5.59 4.32
Cunient Service Cust 13.47 11.39
Past Service Cost - 270
Benefits Paid directly by Employer (0.02) 0.07)
Benefits Paid from fund (8.28) (6.39)]
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic assumptions - o
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Financial Assumptions 1.81 (2.03)
Actuarial Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience (1.78) 3.24
Present value of Projected Benefit Obligation at the end of the year 88.71 71.92

(iii) Tables of Fair value of plan assets:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Fair Value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 8.65 573
Interest Income 0.62 0.38
Contributions by Employer 10.99 9.00
Benefits paid (8.28) (6.39),
Expected return on plan assets, excluding interest (2.77) (0.07)
Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the year 9.21 8.65

(iv) Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

Particulars Asat As al
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Present value of benefit obligaiton at the end of the year (88.71) (77.92)
Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the year 9.21 8.65
Funded Status (Surplus/(Deficit)) (79.50) (69.27)

Net (liability) / asset disclosed in the Balance Sheet P ——— (79.50) (69.27)
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31 Disclosure Under Indian Accounting Standard 19 (Ind As 19) On Employee Benefits: (Confinued)
b) Defined Benefit Plan: (Continued)

(v) Netinterest cost for the year

Particulars Asat As atl
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Present value of projected benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 77.92 64.76
Fair Value of plan assets at the beginning of the year (8.65) (5.73)
Net Liability/ (Assets) at the beginning of the year 69.27 59.02
Interest Cost 5.59 4.32
Interest Income (0.62) (0.38)
Net interest cost for current year 4.97 3.94
(vi) Expenses recognised in the statement of profit & loss for the year
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Current Service cost 13.47 11.39
Net Interest Cost 4.97 3.94
Past Service Cost - 2.70
Exp recognised in the st of profit & loss 18.44 18.03
(vii) Expenses recognised in the other comprehensive income
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on obligation for the year 0.03 1.21
Retum on Plan assets, excluding interest income 2.717 0.07
Net (Income)/Expense for the year recognized in OCI 2.80 1.28
(viii) Balance Sheet Reconciliation
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 201¥|
Opening Net Liability 69.27 59.02
Fxpenses Recognized in Statement of Profir or T oss 18.44 18.03
Expenses Recognized in OCI 2.80 1.28
Benefits Paid directly by Employer 0.02) (0.07)
Employers Contribution (10.99) (9.00)
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet 79.50 69.27
(ix) Category of Assets
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 201Y March 31, 2018
Insurer Managed Funds 9.21 8.65
(x) Maturity Analysis of the Benefits Payments - From the Fund
Particulars Asat As at]
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Projected Benefits Payable in future years from the date of reporting
1st following year 13.11 9.91
2nd following year 10.97 10.21
3rd following year 10.96 10.00
4th following year 12.03 9.79
5th following year 10.05 10.39
Sum of years 6 to 10 35.90 32.88
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31

Disclosure Under Indian Accounting Standard 19 (Ind As 19) On Employee Benefits: (Continued)
b) Defined Benefit Plan: (Continued)

(xi) Sensitivity analysis

|Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 88.71 77.92
Delta effect of +1% change in the rate of discounting .11) (3.67)
Delta effect of -1% change in the rate of discounting 4.74 4.09
Delta effect of +1% change in the rate of salary increase 4.24 in
Delta effect of -1% change in the rate of salary increase (3.79) (3.45)
Delta effect of +1% change in the rate of employee turnover (0.20) (0.23)
Delta effect of -1% change in the rate of employee turnover 0.33 0.22

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occuring at the end of the

reporting period , while holding all other assumptions constant,

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it unlikely that the

change in assumptions would oceur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected unit obligation has been calculated using the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit

obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.

There is no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.
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Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Sor the year ended March 31, 2019

(Rs. in millions)

33 Contingent Liabilities not provided for in the accounts:

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts*

Excise related matters 44.75 45.07

Sales tax/ VAT related matters 655,15 655.15

Goods and Services tax related matter 74.93 e
774.83 700.22

i. The Company had preferred an appeal before the Central Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal (‘CESTAT’) against a demand of Rs 44.26
million (Previous Year: Rs 44.26 million) for earlier years by the Central Excise Department on account of excise duty, interest and penalty. The
Company has deposited a sum of Rs 1 million as pre-deposit in compliance with the Order passed by the CESTAT which has stayed the recovery of
the remaining amount till the matter is finally decided. During the current year, CESTAT has remanded the matter to the Assessing Officer for fresh

consideration.

ii The Company had preferred an appeal before CESTAT against a demand of Rs 0.49 million (Previous Year: Rs 0.49 million) for earlier years by the
Central Excise Department on account of excise duty, interest and penalty. The Company has deposited a sum of Rs 0.01 million as pre-deposit in
compliance with the Order passed by the Central Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, which has stayed the recovery of the remaining amount
till the matter is finally decided. During the current year, the CESTAT has remanded the matter Lo the Assessing Officer for fresh consideration.

iii The Company had preferred an appeal before the Maharashtra Sales Tax Tribunal against a demand of Rs 2.41 million (Previous Year: 2.41 million)
against the appeal order passed by the Joint Commissioner of Sales Tax (Appeal) Il Mumbai on account of disallowance of resale of toys and cheese
and taxability of Birthday Party Income for the years 2003-04. The Maharashtra Sales Tax Tribunal has partly allowed the appeal in case of Birthday
party income and dismissed the claim of resale of toys and cheese. During the current year, the Company has filed Rectification Application before
the Maharashtra Sales Tax Tribunal, Mumbai following apparent errors made in the judgment. The Company is also in the process of filing an appeal
to the High Court. Based on the advice of external counsel, the Company believes that it has good grounds for quashing the impugned order.
Secondly, the Company has preferred an appeal before Joint Commissioner of Sales Tax (Appeal) I Mumbai against demand of Rs. 1.64 million
(Previous Year 1.64 million) as per order passed by assessing officer on account of disallowance of resale of toys and cheese and taxability of
Birthday Party Income for the year 2004-05. The appeal is pending before the Joint Commissioner of Sales tax. The Company has deposited an
aggregate amount of Rs. 1.53 million as part payment as directed by the said authorities for both the years.

iv During the financial year 2013-14, the Company had received demand notices aggregating to Rs. 97.39 million for the years 2008-09 to 2012-13
issued by the Assistant Commissioner of Commercial Taxes, Tamil Nadu towards Tamil Nadu Value Added Tax. The Company had filed an appeal
before the Appellate Deputy Commissioner against the aforesaid demand and had paid Rs. 97.39 million under protest. During the previous year, the
Appellate Deputy Commissioner has dismissed the appeal against the Company and the Company has filed appeal before Tribunal against the order
of Appellate Deputy Commissioner. Based on the advice of external counsel, the Company believes it has good ground for appeal to be decided in its
favour. Accordingly, no provision is considered necessary in this matter.

v During the year 2013-14, the Company had received demand notices/order of Rs. 553.71 million for the period December, 2008 to October, 2013
from the Deputy Commissioner of Commercial Taxes, Karnataka alleging that the Company had obtained capital goods from other states, and
therefore is ineligible to avail the benefits of lower rate of tax under the composition scheme contemplated under the Kamnataka Value Added Tax
Act, 2003. In respect of the various notices, the Company filed two writ petitions before the High Court of Karnataka.

Upon hearing, both petitions were admitted and the Court granted an interim stay on the operation of all the notices and on the order passed for the
FY 2012-13 and any proceedings in connection therewith. The said writ petitions came to be disposed of by a single judge of the Hon’ble High Court
of Karnataka wherein the interim stay granted by the High Court earlier was vacated and with a direction to the petitioner to approach the respective
Appellate authonties as mandated under the provisions of the Karnataka Value Added Tax, 2003. The Company accordingly preterred an appeal
before the Joint Commissioner of Commercial Tax. Appeals-1 against the Order passed for the finaneial year 2012-13 afier fulfilling the mandatory
condition of depositing 30% of the total demand of Rs.189.72 million i.e. an amount of Rs.19.41 million was deposited after considering the deposit
of Rs. 37.50 million made carlier. Thereafter, the Company also preferred a writ appeal before the Division Bench of the High Court inter alia
seeking stay on operation of the various notices/order issued by the Deputy Commissioner of Commercial Taxes, Karnataka. The High Court granted
an interim stay on operation of the various notices/order conditional upon deposit of 30% of the amount demanded. The Company has deposited a
wial swi ol M. 3081 wllllon. Feudlug dlspusal uf die wile appedl aid based ui die adviee of eaterinal counsel, ie Cuotipauy Lelleves dia b lias
good grounds for quashing of the impugned notices/order. Accordingly, no provision is considered necessary in this matter.

vi The Company had received notice for Intimation of investigation under Rule 129 of the central Goods and Services Tax rules, 2017 from Directorate
General of Anti-Profiteering (DGAP). The reason for investigation is whether the rate of GST on the services provided by the company was reduced
with effect from 15.11.2017 and if so, whether the company passed on the benefit of such reduction to the recipients of services in terms of section
171 of Central Goods and Service Tax Act, 2017. The said investigation is for the period of 15th November 2017 to 31st January 2018. The company
has objected to the invocation of anti-profiteering provisions under the GST statute on two grounds. The first ground is that the provisions of section
171 of Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 apply only in cases where the contract of sale/supply has been entered into prior to change in rate
of Tax or change in input tax credit and no otherwise. The second ground advanced by the company is that a regulation of the sale price would
amount to an infringement of the right to carry any trade as guaranteed under Article 19 (1) (g) of the Constitution of India. DGAP has rejected the
above grounds and investigated the case and submitted his report to National Anti-profiteering Authority (NAA). NAA after evaluaung the
submission of both the parties passed order in favor of revenue in which NAA directed: : 3,55




Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2019

(Rs. in millions)
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Contingent Liabilities not provided for in the accounts: (Continued)

(i) HRPL to deposit Rs. 74.93 million,
(ii) DGAP to investigate the quantum of denial after 31st January, 2018 and

(iii) DGAP to initiate penalty proceedings against HRPL. The said order has been challenged by way of a writ petition before the High Court of Bombay.

34

35

36

Upon hearing, petition were admitted and the Court granted an interim stay on the operation of all the direction of NAA and any proceedings in
connection therewith. Pending disposal of the writ and based on the advice of external counsel, the Company believes that Company has a very good
case on both law and facts. Accordingly, no provision is considered necessary in this matter.

Notes

i) Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of
the above as it is determinable only on receipt of judgements / decisions pending with various forums / authorities.

ii) The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed
as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a
materially adverse effect on its financial position. The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.

Capital and other Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) and not provided for is Rs. 87.82 million (Previous year
Rs. 60.42 million).

Managerial Remuneration

In the earlier years, the Company had applied for the approval of the Central Government for payment of remuneration in excess of the limit specified
under the applicable Companies Act to its two whole time directors. During the previous year, the application for the period April 2013 to March
2014 and for the period April 2014 to March 2015 was disposed off by the Central Government by partly approving payment of excess remuneration.
Consequently, the unapproved amount of excess remuneration of Rs.19.4 million was recovered back from the directors and credited to employee
benefits expense account during the year ended March 31, 2018.

Service Tax on Conducting Charges

The Company had, in accordance with the advice of its lawyers, filed a petition in the Bombay High Court challenging the amendment in law
pertaining to levy of service tax on renting of immovable property retrospectively from June 1, 2007. The Hon'ble High Court dismissed the petition
and upheld the constitutional validity of the amendment.

Against the Judgement, the Retailers Association of India (RAI) (of which the Company is a member) had, on behalf of its members, preferred an
appeal in the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India (SCI). The said appeal is pending for disposal by the SCL. However, by an order (“the Order”), the SCI
issued, inter alia, the following directions:

1) All members of RAT to deposit 509 of the arrears due for the period 1st June, 2007 through 30th September, 2011 with the concerned department in
three equated instalments on or before 1st November, 2011, 1st January, 2012 and 1st March, 2012;

2) For the balance 50% of the arrears, all the members of RAI are:

(a) To file solvent surety to the satisfaction of the jurisdictional Commissioners;
(b) To file affidavits in the SCI, within four weeks from the date of the Order, undertaking to pay the balance arrears of service tax, stayed in terms of
the Order, as may be directed by the SCI at the time of final disposal of the appeal;

3) The successful party in the appeal to be entitled to interest on the amount stayed by the SCI at such rate as may be directed by the SCI at the time of

final disposal of the appeal.

For the service tax due from 1st October, 2011, no relief in terms of injunction was granted by the SCL.
In respect of above SCI directions, the Company had deposited 50% of the disputed amount and for the balance 50% provided solvent surety. The
amount under dispute has been fully provided in books.

The Company has commenced payment of service tax with effect from 1st October, 2011 to those parties to whom the Company has contractually
agreed to pay service tax.
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Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2019

(Rs. in millions)
37  Derivative instruments and un-hedged foreign currency exposure

(a) Derivatives outstanding as at March 31,2019 is Rs, Nil ( March 31, 2018 Rs. Nil)
(b) Un-hedged foreign currency exposure as at Balance Sheet date

|Particulars Asat As at

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

Advances Reccivable in cash/kind 17.40 (025 USD -
millions @ Rs. 69.17)

Trade Payables 3.55 (0.05 USD -
millions @ Rs. 69.17)

Trade Receivables 6.92 ( 0.05 USD -
millions @ Rs. 69.17)

38 Segment Reporting:

Based on the "management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 - Operating segments, the Chairman and whole time directors of the Company has been
identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The Chief Operating Decision Maker evaluates the Company's performance and allocates
resources on the analysis of various performance indicators by business segments.

The Company has only one geographical segment as it caters to the needs of the domestic market only.

39  Leases Disclosure:

(a) In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 17 - “Leases” notified under Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the details of obligation
on long term cancellable operating lease in respect of the premises taken by the Company are as follows :
Stores and Office premises are obtained on operating leases. The rentals for some of the stores are fixed while for the others they are based as a
percentage of the revenue generated by the respective store. There are no restrictions imposed under such lease arrangements. The leases are generally
renewable at the option of the lessee. The lease agreements have an escalation clause and are cancellable in nature,

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Fixed Lease pavments for the year 87046 649.86]
Lease payments based on percentage of revenue 454.20 406.04
Total 1,324.66 1,055.90

(b) The Company has sub leased premises (o others on operating lease, There is no escalation clause in the lease agreement and are cancellable in nature,
There are no restrictions imposed by the lease arrangement.
Sub-lease income recoguised in the Statement of Profit and Loss is as follows:

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Sub-lease income based on percentage of revenue 2.50 2.04
Sub-lease income based on lease agreement 17.57 10.35]

Under the previous GAAP, lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognised as an expense over the lease term as per the terms of the lease
agreement. Under Ind AS, if the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s
expected inflationary cost increase, hence lease payments are not straightlined.
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Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006:

Particulars

Principal amount and interest duc thercon remaining unpaid to any
supplicr as at the end of accounting year.

Amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, of the Micro
Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with
amounts of payment made to supplicr beyond the appointed day during
accounting year.**

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each
accounting year.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006.

2018-12
0.04*

2017-18

* Based on confirmation / information available with the Company
** No interest has been paid during the year

Employee Stock Option Scheme

a) Westlife Development Limited (“WDL’ or the ‘Holding Company’) has established an employee stock option scheme (‘the Scheme’) which covers
certain eligible employees of the Company. During the year ended March 31, 2019, an employee stock option plan (ESOP) was in existence. The relevant

details of the scheme and the grant are as below.

On September 18, 2013, the board of directors of the holding company, approved the Equity Settled ESOP Scheme 2013 (Scheme 2013) for issue of
stock options to the key employees and directors of the Company. According to the Scheme 2013, the employees selected by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee from time to time would be entitled to options, subject to satisfaction of the prescribed vesting conditions. The contractual life
(comprising the vesting period and the exercise period) of options granted is 9 years. The other relevant terms of the grant are as below:

Vesting period

Graded vesting — 20% every year

Exeiclse perlud Y years
b) The details of the activity under the scheme are as below
'Vesting period 2018-19 2017-18
No of Options Weighted average No of Options Weighted average
exercise price (Rs) exercise price (Rs)|
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 700,950 209.99 450,890 192.24
Granted during the year - - 302,000 238.00
Forfeited during the year 78,250 247.31 33,500 267.33
Exercised during the year 15,655 161.22 18,440 130.73]
Expired during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 607,045 206.43 700,950 209.99
Exercisable at the end of the year 343,545 180.28 200,825 160.7

For options exercised during the period, the weighted average share price at the exercise date was Rs. 385.75 per share (Previous Year: Rs. 284.01 per

share).

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the stock options outstanding as at March 31, 2019 is 5.50 years (Previous Year: 6.82 years). The
range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year was Rs. 100 to Rs. 300 (Previous Year: Rs. 100 to Rs. 300).
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Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Rs. in millions)
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Employee Stock Option Scheme (Continued)

c) Effect of employee share based payment plans on the Statement of Profit and Loss and on its financial position.

Particulars 2018-19
Total Employee Comy ion Cost pertaining to share option plans 8.34
(excluding taxes)

2017-18
27.59

The holding company measures the cost of ESOP using the intrinsic value method and recovers this amount from the Company. However the Company is
accounting basis fair value method and the difference between fair value and intrinsic value is taken to equity. WDL has recovered Rs. 2.51 million
(inclusive of taxes) (Previous Year Rs. 19 million (inclusive of taxes)) from the Company towards compensation cost pertaining to the share based

payment and included in Note 23 “Employee Benefits Expense”™ .

d) There were no stock options granted during the current year and the weighted average fair value of stock options granted during the previous year was Rs.

238. The Black Scholes valuation model has been used for computing the weighted average fair value considering the following inputs:

Particulars March 31, 2019*

Dividend yield (%) N
Expected volatility (%) -
Risk-free interest rate (%) -
Weighted average share price (Rs) -
Exercise Price (Rs) =
Expected life of options granted in years -

March 31, 2018

0%
54.49%
6.64%
238
238
5.76

*No options were granted during the current year

The expected life of the stock is based on historical data and current expectations are not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. The
expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is indicative of future trends, which

may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

In view of the recent judgement of the Honourable Supreme Court of India dated February 28, 2019 regarding the definition of wages for calculation of
Provident fund contribution, as legally advised, the Company has provided for the liability prospectively from the date of judgement, pending further
clarity on the matter including outcome of the review petition filed against the said judgement.

Karnings per share

Profit/ (Loss) attributable to equity shareholders (basic and diluted)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Profit / (Loss) for the year artributable to equity holders 216.55

Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year (Refer Note 14) 1,747,628

Add : Weighted average number of equity shares issued during the year -

Number of equity shares considered for calculation of basic and diluted 1,747,628
carings per share

Earnings per share (Rs.)

- Basic and Diluted 123.91

For the year ended|
March 31, 2018
(544.18))

402,628

147.397

550,025

(989.38)

Disclosure required under Scction 186 (4) of the Companics Act 2013

Included m loans and advances are certain loans the particulars of which are disclosed below as required under Section 186 (4) ot the Compamies Act,

2013.

Unsecured Loans

Particulars 2018-19
Sangdatta Lodge, interest free, due on August 20, 2021 30.84
Haripriya Electronics carrying interest @ 12% due on January 1, 2019 -

2017-18

43.43
131

The loan is provided for financing working capital requirements also refer note 6.
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Hardcastle Restaurants Private Limited

P

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2019

(Rs. in miltions)

45  The Company has cvaluated subsequent events from the balance sheet date through August 31, 2019, the date at which the financial statements were
available 1o be issued, and determined that there are no lems fo report.

For aad on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Hardeastle Restaurants Private Limited

Bewer: Cpn Vo

Danwari Lal Jatla Seems Affra Namblar
Director Director
Membership No: 100060
UDIN No. |81p00 FOAAAARWGODT W
\
Suresh Lalshmingrayanan Radhas Jain
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
August 31, 2019 Avgust 31,2019,
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